Dinas a Sir Abertawe



Hysbysiad o Gyfarfod

Fe'ch gwahoddir i gyfarfod

Pwyllgor Datblygu Polisi Addysg a Sgiliau

Lleoliad:

Dyddiad: Dydd Mercher, 16 Chwefror 2022

Amser: 4.00 pm

Cadeirydd: Y Cynghorydd Mike Durke

Aelodaeth:

Cynghorwyr: J P Curtice, F M Gordon, B Hopkins, L R Jones, M A Langstone, H Lawson, M B Lewis, S Pritchard a/ac D W W Thomas

Gwylio ar-lein: https://bit.ly/3L5TFyU

Agenda

		Rhif y Dudalen.
1	Ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb.	
2	Datgeliadau o fuddiannau personol a rhagfarnol. www.abertawe.gov.uk/DatgeluCysylltiadau	
3	Cofnodion. Cymeradwyo a llofnodi cofnodion y cyfarfod(ydd) blaenorol fel cofr cywir.	1 - 3 nod
4	Profiadau Niweidiol yn ystod Plentyndod	4 - 9
5	Cynllun Gwaith 2020 - 2021.	10
\mathcal{H}	Cyfarfod nesaf: Dydd Mercher, 16 Mawrth 2022 ar 4.00 pm	
Pen	v Evans naeth Gwasanaethau Democrataidd Id Iau, 10 Chwefror 2022	

Cyswllt: Gwasanaethau Democrataidd - 636923

Agenda Item 3

City and County of Swansea

Minutes of the Education & Skills Policy Development Committee

Remotely via Microsoft Teams

Wednesday, 19 January 2022 at 4.00 pm

Present: Councillor M Durke (Chair) Presided

Councillor(s) J P Curtice L R Jones S Pritchard **Councillor(s)** F M Gordon H Lawson D W W Thomas Councillor(s) B Hopkins M B Lewis

Also present:

Councillor R V Smith (Cabinet Member for Education Improvement, Learning & Skills)

Dr Nalda Wainwright BA Ed (Hons) MA Ed. PhD. FHEA (Associate Professor University of Wales Trinity Saint David and Director: Wales Academy for Health and Physical Literacy)

Officer(s)

Gareth Borsden David Jones Helen Morgan-Rees Stephanie Williams Democratic Services Officer Sport & Health Manager Director of Education Principal Lawyer

Apologies for Absence

None

28 Disclosures of Personal and Prejudicial Interests.

In accordance with the Code of Conduct adopted by the City and County of Swansea, the following interest was declared;

Councillor M Durke – Agenda Item 4 – Personal - Myself and Dr Nalda Wainwright are both employees of University of Wales Trinity Saint David.

29 Minutes.

Resolved that the minutes of the Education & Skills Policy Development Committee held on 15 December 2021 be agreed as a correct record.



30 Position Statement Sport and Health Service Partnership with Education

The Chair welcomed Dr Nalda Wainwright, a leading authority in Wales on children's health and physical literacy to the meeting.

Dr Nalda Wainwright then gave a brief overview of her background and experience in the subject area, and gave a detailed and informative powerpoint presentation to members.

Included in the presentation were the following areas:

- decline in physical activity across society;
- definition of physical literacy;
- development process for activity from toddlers to pensioners;
- children are moving less now than in the past and the various reasons and factors of modern lift that impact on this;
- increase and availability of technology for young children and its impact on reducing outside activity and play;
- lack of outdoor activity, play and mixing with other children of different ages and its negative impact on children's development both physically and mentally which can cause issues with cognitive aspects and speech etc;
- motor development mountain and movement vocabulary and development;
- positive/negative spiral of engagement and the effects and relationships between the lack of activity and ill health going forward in later life;
- links between motor competence and physical activity and its impact and importance in rising the perceived physical competence in young children, particularly those under the age of 7;
- high/scope Perry Preschool Project in the USA and its findings relating to both the financial and social benefits received, compared to the amount invested, which could be up to a sevenfold benefit;
- SKIP Cymru(Successful Kinaesthetic Instruction for Pre-schoolers in Wales) early years/foundation phase based initiative that has proved to benefit and develop young children's motor skills;
- Welsh Government report on Physical Activity of Children & Young People which has been agreed but not yet rolled out across the country due to Covid pandemic.

David Jones, spoke further to his circulated report which provided the committee with an overview of the purpose of the sport and health team in relation to partnerships and shared outcomes with education colleagues with a view to developing further strategic links.

He indicated he supported the comments and initiatives outlined by Dr Nalda Wainwright above.

He outlined the background details and main policies and influences that the team follows in Swansea whilst delivering its services to people across the various age ranges and communities. He referred to the funding received from Sport Wales. The services operational strategy which aims to create an active and healthy Swansea was outlined at appendix a to the report.

He indicated that the staff are committed to improving and expanding physical literacy across the board, and indicated that the staff particularly enjoy the sessions with the young people and encouraging them to get involved for all the reasons outlined during the previous presentation and detailed in the report. He outlined that he has staff qualified in Physical Literacy courses run by the University of Wales Trinity St David.

He detailed the skills, experiences, qualifications and knowledge the staff have, which enables them to deliver a wide range of sessions to the whole community and also outlined that the team offers whole school staff and community volunteer training in aspects of physical literacy and generic sport and physical activity.

He detailed that often in schools, staff will target and specifically encourage young people who aren't involved in the 'traditional' school sports teams to get involved and participate.

He outlined that the team is involved with over 90 schools in Swansea, and outlined the success of the School Holiday Enrichment Programme (SHEP) and referred to the excellent results and positive feedback received from a survey of young people who had taken part in the scheme (appendix b to the report).

Members asked various questions and made comments regarding both areas covered during the presentation and circulated report, to which Dr Wainwright, the Officer responded accordingly.

The Chair indicated he had seen some similar evidence in a scrutiny meeting to that referred to in the study from the USA above. He would try and source the information and circulate to members if possible.

He thanked Dr Wainwright, and the officer for their input and attendance at the meeting.

31 Workplan 2021/2022.

The Chair referred to the workplan as outlined and detailed in the report and indicated the items for the upcoming meetings: February – Adverse Childhood Experiences March – Outdoor Education

Resolved that the workplan be noted.

The meeting ended at 5.04 pm

Chair

Agenda Item 4



Report of the Education and Skills Policy Development Committee

16 February 2022

Education Response to Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACEs)

	The report presents the positional statement of the Education Directorate on the response to research on Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACEs) and its effects within education.	
Report Author:	Helen Howells	
Finance Officer:	Ben Smith	
Legal Officer:	Stephanie Williams	
Access to Services Officer:	: Rhian Millar	
For Information		

1. Background

- 1.1 This report provides an overview of Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACEs) which covers its definition, purpose, as well as providing a local picture of need. It also outlines for the committee a detailed picture of how the Education Directorate is providing support to ensure the cycle of ACEs is prevented.
- 1.2 ACEs are described by Ace Aware Wales as traumatic events, particularly those in early childhood that significantly affect the health and wellbeing of people in Wales, the rest of the UK and the world.
- 1.3 Public Health Wales undertook an ACE Study for Wales in 2015 of over 2,000 adults aged 18-69 years who provided anonymous information on their exposure to ACEs before the age of 18 years and their health and lifestyles as adults. The survey showed that suffering four or more harmful experiences in childhood increases the chances of high-risk drinking in adulthood by four times, being a smoker by six times and being involved in violence approximately 14 times.

- 1.4 The report also estimates the burden of health-harming behaviours on the NHS that could have been avoided if Adverse Childhood Experiences were prevented across Wales.
- 1.5 In Swansea we know that many of our children will have experienced multiple ACEs in their young lives. In comparison with other local authorities, we have significantly higher numbers of care experienced children, children on the child protection register and a high number claiming free school meals.
- 1.6 Many health reports claim that throughout the Covid-19 pandemic children and families have experienced increased anxieties, altered routines, jeopardised finances, and the sickness and deaths of loved ones. This is concerning, because children are uniquely vulnerable to the effects of an overactive stress response due to the fact that their brains and bodies are still developing. This is especially true for those who already have a history of ACEs, and may already be sensitive to life stressors as a result.

2. Education response to ACEs

- 2.1 Our schools in Swansea have always been quick to respond to the needs of its learners, Estyn reports from 2017 to 2020 show that 97.3% of schools received excellent or good outcomes to Wellbeing and attitudes to learning, with no schools receiving unsatisfactory outcomes. Similarly, 97.4% received excellent or good outcomes to Care, Support and Guidance, with no schools receiving unsatisfactory outcomes.
- 2.2 In response to raising vulnerabilities among children and young people within our Swansea schools, the Education Directorate has provided a coordinated approach to providing support to schools
- 2.3 The Education Directorate liaised with ACEs Hub Wales whose aim was to support in creating changes that make Wales a leader in tackling and preventing ACEs. Their mission is to share ideas and learning, and to challenge and change ways of working so together, we break the cycle of ACEs. ACEs Hub Wales, now known as Ace Aware Wales were given funding by Welsh Government until April 2021 to deliver a trauma informed training package available to all school settings to raise awareness around the long term impact of ACEs and ensure all staff are fully informed of the recent findings from the Welsh ACE Study conducted by Public Health Wales in 2016.
- 2.4 With the new emphasis on Health and Wellbeing as a key area of learning in the Successful Futures Curriculum this allows schools to ensure they are able to identify and support vulnerable pupils appropriately in preparation for the changes. Over 40 schools benefitted from this free training, and ACEs Hub Wales also provided training for governors and local authority officers.

- 2.5 The regional professional learning offer for wellbeing has always been an excellent source of training which many of our schools have benefitted from. As ERW and now Partneriaeth, regional staff recognised that trauma and attachment were huge barriers to learning at an early stage, and were one of the first regions to introduce an Attachment Awareness pilot scheme. They have consistently sourced excellent training on which attendance from Swansea schools high.
- 2.6 As well as being communicated to headteachers from the region itself via its Partneriaeth newsletter, the Education Directorate includes any regional training in its weekly education newsletter.
- 2.7 The Looked After Children (LAC) element of the Pupil Development Grant (PDG) is a school improvement grant issued by Welsh Government to be used as a school improvement grant, to "disproportionately advantage" care experienced children. Schools have used their allocation of PDG LAC to purchase Nurture and Wellbeing facilities and equipment, such as the resilience toolkit, programmes to support mental health through meditation and mindfulness. Using the funding to upskill staff through training is also a key theme for this grant. Some schools have used this to attend CRUSE bereavement training and others to improve their understanding of the trauma experienced by their adopted learners.
- 2.8 The Education Directorate has built up excellent working relationships with other departments within Swansea council and external services. An integrated approach to tackling the issues stemming from ACEs has been undertaken through a variety of strategies:
 - 2.8.1 The Emotional Health and Psychological Wellbeing Group (EHPW). The purpose of Swansea's Emotional and Psychological Well-being Strategic Group is to take a coordinated partnership approach to understanding the needs of its children and young people's mental and emotional health needs and ensure that the partnership develops services that provide the right support at the right time to best meet those needs.
 - 2.8.2 Contextual safeguarding is a new and innovative approach to safeguarding children that directs a focus onto extra familial harm. A Pilot has been running in a selection of secondary schools in the city and the approach is now ready to be expanded. Contextual safeguarding allows officers to focus on risky situations, places, networks and peer groups rather than considering individual children and their individual circumstances. It does not replace child protection processes or care and support safety and wellbeing planning but enables agencies to work together more holistically to respond to contexts in which children and young people could be exposed to risk, in particular risk to exploitation. A self-assessment tool

has been developed to support schools in responding to extra familial harm which should be encouraged to review and identify areas of improvement in responding to behaviour in a contextually safeguarding manner.

2.8.3 Post Covid we have seen a rise in exclusions, especially those which are permanent. A strategy to reduce exclusions has been initiated, and has been well supported, which brings together themes which have been identified as action plans. Smaller working groups have now been established to research and deliver guidance based on firstly, our data needs to explore trends and will feed into the contextual safeguarding work. Secondly, to bring together the training offer for schools and local authority officers and to explore alternatives to exclusion. The third action point is access to the curriculum, which is split into two strands, supporting language needs and social communication and exploring offsite education to promote a curriculum fit for every child's need. The last strand is ensuring wellbeing of staff and learners.

3. Examples of good practise and forward look

- 3.1 Cefn Hengoed Community School, use their EOTAS devolved funding to deliver an on-site provision named CHACE. Through building strong relationships with the young people and using trauma informed strategies, they have ensured engagement and are preventing the cycle of ACEs. They ensure the learner has off site educational experiences which give the learners a different perspective of education.
- 3.2 Additionally, they also use Emotion Based School Avoidance (EBSA) to aid in their post Covid recovery strategy. By using data they have identified those learners with low engagement and high anxiety, as a direct consequence of the pandemic. The EBSA toolkit, allows a collaborative approach with families and schools to builds relationships and trust.
- 3.3 Plasmarl Primary School have embedded Trauma informed strategies, including employing a wellbeing lead who has a diploma in trauma informed practises. They have embedded the principles of ACEs, including purchasing a therapy dog, to create a unique package if support which has benefited all learners. This is supported by the fact that they have not issued an exclusion since 2012. They are currently being assessed by Trauma Informed School (Wales) to be presented with the Trauma informed and mentally healthy schools award. If successful will be only the second school in South Wales to be issued with the award, and the first in Swansea.
- 3.4 As an Education Directorate we are constantly looking at new ways to improve, and are currently pursuing a number of options.

- 3.5 Further exploration of bespoke educational packages to support vulnerable learners. The aim is to provide educational experiences that suit the child and their life experiences. Many children who have experienced prolonged trauma are living in a situation of toxic stress, and need support away from the classroom to be able to learn. We are currently working with our external funding department to explore ways in which these can be provided.
- 3.6 Further partnership working with the contextual safeguarding team. They are currently working in collaboration with a number of schools, to explore the "what matters" conversation with the children associated with risky behaviour. They can provide support and training for staff.
- 3.7 We have made excellent progress in this area but are always keen to explore new ideas to ensure our children and young people have the best educational experience we can possibly provide. Ace Aware Wales are very keen to work with us to become an ACE aware Council, using their TrACE Toolkit, they look at ways to do things differently and advocate kindness to break the cycle of ACEs.

4. Integrated Assessment Implications

- 4.1 The Council is subject to the Equality Act (Public Sector Equality Duty and the socio-economic duty), the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and the Welsh Language (Wales) Measure, and must in the exercise of their functions, have due regard to the need to:
 - Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct prohibited by the Acts.
 - Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic and those who do not.
 - Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and those who do not.
 - Deliver better outcomes for those people who experience socioeconomic disadvantage
 - Consider opportunities for people to use the Welsh language
 - Treat the Welsh language no less favourably than English.
 - Ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs.
 - 4.1.1 The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 mandates that public bodies in Wales must carry out sustainable development. Sustainable development means the process of improving the economic, social, environmental and cultural wellbeing of Wales by taking action, in accordance with the sustainable development principle, aimed at achieving the 'wellbeing goals'.

- 4.1.2 Our Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) process ensures we have paid due regard to the above. It also takes into account other key issues and priorities, such as poverty and social exclusion, community cohesion, carers, the United Nations Convention on the Rights of the Child (UNCRC) and Welsh language.
- 4.2 This report is for information only.

5. Legal Implications

5.1 There are no legal implications.

6. Financial Implications

6.1 Whilst there are no direct financial implications arising from this report, it may lead to decisions being taken later that may have costs attached. Any such costs will need to be managed within departmental resources at that time with due regard to the Council's medium term financial plan.

Background Papers: None

Appendices: None



Education & Skills PDC - Work Plan 2021-2022

Meeting Date	Agenda Items
16 June 2021	Workplan Discussion
21 July 2021	Professor Christopher Chapman (Glasgow University)
15 September 2021	Data Trends on Vulnerable Learners.
20 October 2021	Further Information & Data Trends on Vulnerable Learners.
	Exclusion Data & Statistics.
17 November 2021	Keeping Pupils On Track: Examples of Best Practice from Pentrehafod and Dylan Thomas Schools.
15 December 2021	Vocational Education.
19 January 2022	Sport, Health & Physical Literacy Provision.
16 February 2022	Adverse Childhood Experiences.
16 March 2022	Outdoor Education.